
LOUISBURG CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 

6:30 P.M., SEPTEMBER 16, 2024 

CITY HALL, 215 S. BROADWAY 

 

The council will conduct a workshop at 6 p.m. This is the livestream link for the workshop:  

https://boxcast.tv/view/agenda-workshop-91624-wgekurhjhn6og0cx4ulr 

 

Meeting Livestream link: 

https://boxcast.tv/view/louisburg-city-council-91624-u1uo3vdunbbe8aj4zprd 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ADOPT AGENDA 

4. APPROVE MINUTES - of the Sept. 3, 2024, regular meeting 

5. APPROVAL OF BILLS 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. RNR Hearing 

B. 2025 Budget 

7. RECOGNITION OF SCHEDULED VISITORS 

A. Renee Slinkard – Constitution Week Proclamation  

B. Dan Rundel – propane tank request 

C. Nick Stambaugh or Cooper Moore – youth center 

D. LHS Student Council – Homecoming road closure 

 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS: Persons who wish to address the Mayor and City Council regarding 

items not on the agenda may do so at this time. Speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes. 

Any presentation is for informational purposes only. Please state your name and address. 

 

9. COUNCIL/COMMISSION REPORTS 

 

https://boxcast.tv/view/agenda-workshop-91624-wgekurhjhn6og0cx4ulr
https://boxcast.tv/view/louisburg-city-council-91624-u1uo3vdunbbe8aj4zprd


10. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

A. Finance 

 

B. Public Works 

- Pool improvements 

 

C. Fire 

 

D. Police 

- Promotion of Officer to Sergeant 

 

E. Administration 

 

11. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

12. MAYOR’S REPORT 

 

13. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 

 

A. Annual STO & UPOC - Continued 

 

B. Farm and Hay Draft Agreements - Continued 

 

C. Gas Connect Fees – Preliminary Review 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 



CITY OF LOUISBURG, KANSAS 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 3, 2024 

The council will conduct a budget workshop from 5:30-6:30 pm.  

Workshop livestream link: 

https://boxcast.tv/view/agenda-workshop-divbm6kyx0ijmrgxgg9d 

 

Meeting livestream link: 

https://boxcast.tv/view/louisburg-city-council-dvaqikfh4klyrdmwlj66 

 

The Council of the City of Louisburg, Kansas, met at 6:30 p.m. in regular session 

in the City Hall Council Chambers. Mayor Donna Cook presiding.  

Council Members Steve Town, Scott Margrave, Tiffany Ellison, Clint Ernst, Kalee 

Stone 

City Administrator Nathan Law 

City Clerk Jessica McGowin 

Public Works Director Peter Yazbec    

Communications Coordinator Jean Carder  

Police Chief Josh Weber 

Fire Chief Gerald Rittinghouse 

City Attorney Mary Stephenson 

  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Mayor Donna Cook led the pledge of allegiance. 

ADOPT THE AGENDA 

Councilmember Clint Ernst moved, seconded by Councilmember Kalee Stone and 

carried 5-0, to adopt the agenda. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

Councilmember Scott Margrave moved, seconded by Councilmember Tiffany 

Ellison and failed with all members abstaining.  

https://boxcast.tv/view/agenda-workshop-divbm6kyx0ijmrgxgg9d


City Attorney Mary Stephenson stated the minutes from August 19, 2024, needed to 

reflect under Tax Abatement that both bonds did not need to be passed for the 

builders to avoid paying back sales tax, it should have stated only a bond needed to 

be passed.  

Councilmember Margrave moved, seconded by Councilmember Ellison, to approve 

the August 19, 2024, with the amendment.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE BILLS 

Councilmember Steve Town moved, seconded by Councilmember Ernst, to approve 

the bills as presented.  Motion carried 5-0.  

Questions on bills: 

Mayor Cook asked if we have billed Louisburg Estates. Yazbec stated that project 

costs will be separated out and presented to council.  

Councilmember Margrave asked if the Principal Life insurance payment was only 

for life insurance.  Finance Clerk Kelly Bond stated that it was for vision and life 

insurance.  

Councilmember Ernst asked about the payment to EMC for legal defense. He asked 

for clarification on what claim that was for.  City Administrator Law stated he would 

email the council the information.  

Ernst asked about a check being reissued.  Bond stated it was lost in the mail and 

had to be re-issued.  

Ernst asked about the WEX fuel bill and asked if staff thought this would be the peak 

of fuel. Law stated that yes this would be the peak, especially with summertime help.  

Ernst asked about the Sam’s club concession receipts and asked if staff knew what 

the total revenue and expenses were or if there was a profit from the concessions.  

Communications Coordinator Jean Carder stated that while some items would 

produce a profit, other items did not so it would even out in the end.  Our goal is to 

keep costs down as much as possible  



Cook asked if the KC Concrete $29,000 was within the bid. Public Works Director 

Peter Yazbec stated that it was.  He also stated there was a cost reduction due to the 

company purchasing rock from the city. 

 

SCHEDULED VISITORS: 

None. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Ruth Urban 106 Broadmoor Drive – Mrs. Urban expressed her concern about 

exceeding revenue neutral and what it would do to poverty-stricken families.  Mrs. 

Urban stated she is employed at the school and sees how hard it is for families to 

provide essentials such as groceries for their families. She is against exceeding RNR. 

Jon Smith 1102 N 2nd St. East – Mr. Smith referred to an affidavit from a previously 

published budget and stated that Admin, Fire and Parks salaries has gone up and he 

would like to see a clearer concept of the budget. He is against exceeding RNR. 

Oren Goldstein 1310 N 1st St. East – Mr. Goldstein stated that taxes go up and 

believes the city has been a good steward of its money.  He does not want to see our 

reserves depleted since we can use those funds to invest.  He stated it is a nominal 

amount collected per home, he doesn’t think it is fair to say moving the salaries back 

in utilities will cause an increase in rates and any increase would be due to the change 

in the cost of production.  He is in favor of exceeding RNR if needed. 

Lori Scott 501 Countryside Drive – Mrs. Scott expressed concern about the lack 

of growth and amenities in the town compared to the high taxes being paid. She 

mentioned that kids were speeding at S. 5th and Countryside and suggested that more 

police be stationed at every corner or that the kids be restricted from entering the 

neighborhood. Mrs. Scott also disagreed with the tax abatement and suggested that 

a forensic audit be conducted. She raised questions about the elimination of Teresa 

Vickrey's position, noting that she made approximately $4,000 compared to another 

staff member making $65,000. However, she admitted that she was unsure of the 

accuracy of this information and needed clarification. Additionally, she inquired 

about the sales tax for the aquatic center and its associated improvements. Law 



clarified that there is a specific sales tax for the aquatic center, and improvements 

are in the works. Ellison added that the aquatic sales tax has been in place since the 

opening of the pool and any tax increase would need to be voted on by the citizens. 

 

COUNCIL/COMMISSION REPORTS 

TOWN – None. 

 

MARGRAVE – Margrave thanked all constituents for taking time to come to the 

meeting and voice their opinion and that their thoughts and opinions are warranted 

and heard.   

 

ELLISON–Ellison expressed gratitude to the constituents for attending the meeting 

and for sending e-mails to voice their opinions. In response to Mr. Smith’s question 

about park salaries, Ellison clarified that the mentioned increase pertains to the LRC 

Director position. While LRC is not directly affiliated with the city, the individual in 

that position receives city benefits and the expenses are reimbursed by LRC to the 

city. This arrangement has no impact on the city's budget as the money is simply 

treated as an expense and then reimbursed by LRC. Ellison emphasized that 

regardless of the decision on RNR, it will not contribute to building the reserve fund. 

She attributed the healthy reserve fund to effective council management with the 

help of staff and increased sales tax revenue between 2021 and 2024, as well as one-

time revenues. The council will now look into the surplus and draw down the reserve 

fund strategically. In response to Mrs. Scott’s suggestion of a forensic audit, Ellison 

stated that such a measure is unnecessary as it implies criminality. Regarding Teresa 

Vickrey's departure from her position at Fox Hall, Ellison was uncertain about the 

exact date of Vickrey’s resignation but mentioned while she appreciated Vickrey 

cleaning and taking reservations for Fox Hall, hiring the facilities coordinator will 

encompass a much larger role including overseeing all city facilities and parks 

including the aquatic center.  Additionally, Ellison pointed out that the council has 

managed to lower taxes over the past four years, and any tax increases were not the 

result of the council's actions. 



 

ERNST – Ernst thanked all in attendance. He reminded everyone that council 

members have city-issued emails if they would like to reach out with questions. 

Ernst spoke on transparency, and would rather people reach out to him or the 

council directly to get answers.  He also provided an update on a recent Lake HOA 

meeting he attended. Ernst inquired about damage to the electrical and irrigation 

system at The Lake, that was a result of the Metcalf 2.0 project. Ernst questioned if 

they could still pursue the county for that. Law stated that was always a separate 

consideration and is working on it with the county. Ernst gave an update on the 

Greater Miami County Economic Development board of directors meeting where 

they spoke on the FIFA World Cup coming in 2026 and are looking at ideas to 

draw the influx of tourists to Miami County.  He stated they approved the 2025 

budget, and the county is working on round table discussions with some being held 

in Louisburg. 

 

STONE – Stone was unable to attend the Planning Commission meeting and 

thanked all in attendance. She urged attendees to come back to attend the Sept. 16, 

2024, meeting. 

 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

PUBLIC WORKS  

CRACK SEAL BIDS -   Public Works Director Peter Yazbec stated the city received 

two bids for the crack sealing work, Vance Brothers at $4.39 a ton, and Pavement 

Management at $4.49 a ton. Both companies agreed not to exceed the allocated 

$79,000 from the Special Street Fund in the 2024 budget.   The recommendation was 

to accept Vance Brothers’ bid.  

Ernst moved, seconded by Margrave, to accept the bid from Vance Brothers not to 

exceed $79,000.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 



CONCRETE REPLACEMENT ON METCALF – Yazbec stated we had recently 

repaired a large water main break on Metcalf.  Due to the break being under a 

commercial driveway approach, Public Works had to remove sections of concrete 

from the approach and sidewalk.  Yazbec solicited three quotes to pour the concrete.  

Nate Apple Concrete - $11,100 

KC Concrete Company - $6,427 

Pavement Management- $18,768.75 

Ellison moved, seconded by Stone, to accept KC Concrete for $6,427.  Motion 

carried 5-0.  

It was noted that this unbudgeted item would be paid out of the Infrastructure 

Improvement Fund. 

 

2024 ADDITIONAL STREET REPAIRS – Yazbec stated that since April 3, 2024, 

when the street work was awarded to Advanced Asphalt, the city has identified 

additional areas that need repark work.  

700 N. Broadway- Full depth 6-inch 

Sunrise and S. Sixth – Full depth 6-inch 

Lake Hill Drive and Danford Drive – Full depth 6-inch 

During repair work, S. 11th from Elm to Olive was identified as an area that was in 

substantial need of further repair.  Staff observed complete base failure on S. 11th St. 

There does not appear to be any base material underneath the asphalt causing 

continuous asphalt failure. Yazbec recommended having the company move forward 

with repairing it correctly since it was currently exposed. Advanced Asphalt 

provided a quote of $66,035.76 for the additional repairs. The extra items are 

unbudgeted. It is recommended to fund this from the Infrastructure Improvement 

Fund.  

Ernst moved, seconded by Town to complete all work requested not to exceed 

$95,527.76.  Motion carried 5-0. 



Ernst asked if this could also come out of the Special Improvement Street fund. Law 

stated yes that can be considered. 

 

PART-TIME PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEE - Yazbec requested approval to hire 

a part-time employee to assist in day-to-day public works duties. The position will 

have similar duties as the summertime employees. Yazbec stated a candidate reached 

out to him who has good qualifications and there are enough projects to sustain the 

position. No benefits would be offered.  The person hired would potentially work 

one to two full days a week. When asked about capping hours per week, Yazbec 

confirmed that it would be possible. He mentioned that this position was not initially 

budgeted for, but since they were down one budgeted summertime employee, there 

might be some salary flexibility. Additionally, when asked about the possibility of 

the candidate transitioning to a full-time role, Yazbec stated that this was an option. 

However, he clarified that the candidate understands this position ends at the end of 

December, but could reapply in the future. 

Ellison moved, seconded by Town, to approve the hire of a part-time employee for 

the remainder of 2024, with a cap of 24 hours per week.  Motion carried 5-0.  

Yazbec asked the council if he needed to bring the candidate back for approval. It 

was decided that was not necessary since it is a seasonal position.   

Mayor Cook asked about the report for lead and copper that is due to the State in 

October. Yazbec stated we have fulfilled our requirements on notification, and are 

working on inputting information into the database, however, the spreadsheet the 

State provided is unclear on what information needs to be put included.  He stated 

we are working with the State on what information needs to be submitted.  Ellison 

asked if there was a penalty if it is not submitted on time. Yazbec is not sure as the 

State has been unclear about the process. 

 

FINANCE - Absent. 

 

FIRE – None. 



  

POLICE - Chief Weber provided updates and appreciated the civil behavior of all 

attendees. He informed the council about a significant recall on three fleet line 

vehicles due to the potential for explosions in the engine compartment. He 

mentioned that a fix is not expected until 2025 and is working with the dealership to 

resolve the issue. Weber also provided updates on the sign at 68/69, the monitoring 

of the crosswalk at Summerfield and Aquatic Drive, cameras, phones, and the 

Sargeant's promotion. In response to a question about a debriefing after the parade, 

Weber stated that he plans to reach out to the Legion after receiving public 

comments. 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT   

None.  

 

MAYOR’S REPORT 

Cook thanked all attendees and stated that she appreciated their input. She also 

reiterated that council members have city-issued email addresses where 

constituents could reach out and ask questions anytime.  

Cook asked how frequently the staff went to Sam's Club and suggested reducing the 

visits to twice a month instead of three times a week. Carder explained that during 

the pool season, there are more trips due to concessions, with visits once a week, and 

usually once a month in the off-season. 

 

ADMINISTRATION  

None. 

 

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 



STO & UPOC ORDINANCE – City Attorney Stephenson raised concerns about 

the STO stating that she feels that amending the STO to not follow 114.5 Unlawful 

Operation of a Work-Site Utility Vehicles does not align with K.S.A. 8-15109. She 

mentioned that the Sheriff and the Kansas Highway Patrol have jurisdiction in the 

city and will be using the State statute. Stephenson asked Law for the background of 

why it was changed. Law explained it was changed to allow UTVs to drive in town 

and to the grocery store. Stephenson emphasized the need for a clear understanding 

of which statute will be used since they contradict each other. Ernst clarified that the 

local ordinance allows people to cross over the highway but not drive on it. 

Stephenson highlighted that the ordinance still conflicts with other agencies and that 

citizens could be cited by the Sheriff or Kansas State trooper. Weber added that there 

was also a conflict with K.S.A. on the lights as the UTV may pass local inspection 

however it does not follow the State and Federal statutes on lighting. Law will 

prepare a new draft for Stephenson to review and bring it back to the next meeting. 

 

FARM AND HAY DRAFT AGREEMENTS -   

Law talked about the updates made to the draft agreements including adding KSA 

2-1314 noxious weeds which would incorporate the noxious weeds declared by 

Miami County under the same statute.  He also added the ingress and egress points 

for the properties. Cook would like to see language added to maintain the ditches.  

Ernst asked who was responsible for mowing the ditches. Cook said usually the 

farmer. Stephenson asked if we had checked on insurance for the property and if it 

is the lessee’s responsibility or the city. Law said he would check with the insurance 

company. Yazbec stated the city is responsible for maintaining the ditches and said 

it would be easier for staff to maintain.      

 

ANNUAL WEBSITE RENEWAL – 

Law stated this was an annual renewal of the website license, which included an 

annual increase in cost. There was a discussion about the features currently being 

utilized, and the available options as well as the options used by other cities such as 

Osawatomie, Paola, and Spring Hill, all of which use Civic Plus. Law stated that all 

mentioned cities saw an increase.  Cook suggested starting a discussion next June to 



explore other options. Ellison asked staff to compile a list of what features are 

currently being used and what features staff like, dislike, or would like to have. 

Ellison moved, seconded by Stone to renew the annual contract with civic plus for 

$9,209.86.  Motion carried 5-0. 

 

RESOLUTION TO ALLOW FOR ALCOHOL DURING CIDER RUN –  

During the meeting, Law proposed a resolution to permit alcohol for the annual 

Cider Run. Ellison inquired about any changes from the previous year to which 

Law responded that there were none. Ernst then asked Chief Weber if there were 

any concerns, to which Weber said they had not experienced any issues last year 

and he does not anticipate any issues this year. He emphasized the need for a 

barrier to designate the drinking area and to make sure they are checking IDs. 

 

Town moved, seconded by Ellison approving an exception to the code of The City 

of Louisburg, Kansas, Chapter III.  Beverages, Article 1. General provisions, section 

3-104 consumption on public property, and chapter XII.  Public property, article 4. 

Special Events. Resolution No. 9-3-24.  Motion carried 5-0. 

ALTERNATE USE OF DOG PARK FUNDS – 

Upon approval from the First Option Trusteed Foundation, Law proposed using the 

grant money previously awarded to the dog park, which failed to match funds and 

did not move forward, to surface areas of the playground at City Park. There was a 

discussion of other areas of the park where funds could be utilized. The grant 

awarded was $15,000. Law stated that a quote of $19,370 was submitted for play 

surfacing, so approval would be needed for the additional $1,680 unbudgeted dollars 

to be paid out of the Aquatic and Recreation Fund. Ellison clarified that the 

unbudgeted amount of $1,680 would be coming out of the Aquatic and Recreation 

Fund, and no money would be taken away from the aquatic center 

Stone moved, seconded by Ellison to approve $1,680 contingent upon approval from 

the Trustees Foundation, to be paid out of the Aquatic and Recreation Fund to 

resurface the playground area at City Park. Motion carried 5-0.  

 



SIDEWALK PROGRAM –  

Law discussed a preliminary program WALK, (Walk Around Louisburg, Kansas). 

Cook asked if this would be for the 2026 budget year. Law said yes. Council all 

agreed they like the idea of the program and to bring it back for 2026 budget 

considerations. 

FARMERS MARKET SURVEY RESULTS- 

Carder has compiled a list of comments from a survey that was conducted for 

community feedback about the farmer’s market. Cook would like to share the 

findings with a group that is interested in starting a community garden. Carder will 

post the findings on the website. Additionally, there was a discussion about some of 

the responses regarding what the community would like to see, such as restrooms 

and a play area. 

Cook inquired about the Phoenix Chinese building, expressing concern about its 

dangerous condition. She mentioned that the glass windows are on the verge of 

falling out and are not made of safety glass. She described the overall structure is in 

poor condition. Discussion revolved around the necessary steps for the city to 

condemn the building, including the legal process and the need for a structural 

inspection. Cook mentioned that a recent structural inspection had been completed 

and indicated that she would attempt to obtain the results for Law. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 8:16 p.m. Ellison moved, seconded by Ernst, to adjourn the meeting.  Motion 

carried 5-0. 

 

Approved:  

________________ 

        Donna Cook, Mayor 

 

        Attest: 



 _________________ 

         Jessica McGowin, City Clerk 

 



         BILLS LIST 9-15-24

ADP, INC 615.06             PAYROLL SERVICES - 8/21/24 & 9/4/24
ATKINSON, JIM 100.00             DEPOSIT REFUND - FOX HALL
BLUE VALLEY PUBLIC SAFETY 1,088.95         REPAIRS/TORNADO SIREN @ SHOP
CHERRYROAD MEDIA 117.00             LEGALS - ORDINANCE 1209
CIVIC PLUS 9,209.86         ANNUAL WEBSITE FEE
CONNECT IT SOLUTIONS 1,449.97         COMPUTER & SETUP - FACILITIES
CSG FORTE PAYMENTS 2,371.12         C/C PROCESSING FEE
DELTA DENTAL OF KANSAS 2,864.60         DENTAL INSURANCE - ALL
EMC INSURANCE COMPANIES 115.50             LEGAL DEFENSE DEDUCTIBLE
ENVIRONMENTAL WORKS 6,359.15         MONTHLY TESTING/SAMPLING - 3 MOS
FAMILY CENTER OF PAOLA 519.88             BOOTS/PAINT FOR LOCATES
FBI-LEEDA 795.00             LEADERSHIP TRAINING
FIRST IMPRESSIONS 150.00             EMPLOYEE HEADSHOTS
GROUNDSKEEPERS LLC 3,200.00         CEMETERY MOWING - AUGUST
HIREOLOGY, INC 267.50             CAREER SITE - SEPTEMBER
HR PARTNERS 65.00                PRE-EMPLOYMENT BACKGROUND
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 1,523.14         PLIERS/TRIMMER LINE/ROUND UP
KANSAS STATE TREASURER 352.50             AUGUST COURT COLLECTIONS
KANSAS TURNPIKE AUTHORITY 3.14                   TOLL FOR FBI LEEDA TRAINING
KBI 400.00             RESTITUTION FOR COURT
LANDSCOPE MASONRY 7,962.00         CEMETERY STONE WALLS
LEAGUE OF KANSAS MUNICIPALITIES 469.63             STO & UPO CODE BOOKS - 2024
LEXIPOL 1,296.36         ACADEMY ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION
LOUISBURG FORD 72.08                OIL CHANGE/TIRE ROTATE - CAR 5
LOUISBURG MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 1,459.25         CITY UTILITIES
MANNING, LORIE 100.00             DEPOSIT REFUND - FOX HALL
MCKELVEY'S TRUE VALUE 199.90             CHLORINE/ADA HAND RAIL/NUTS/MSC
MEADOWLARK PLUMBING 1,240.96         ADA FAUCETS/WATER SHUT OFF-LYP
MHS JANITORIAL CLEANING 1,150.00         MONTHLY CLEANING SERVICE
MIAMI COUNTY AUTO 26.50                TIRE REPAIR - CAR 38
MIAMI LUMBER INC 47.24                LUMBER/FARMERS MARKET BENCH
MO-KAN DIAL, INC. 1,414.52         TELEPHONE/INTERNET SERVICES
NETSTANDARD, INC 3,195.00         CLOUD BACKUP/IT SECURITY/SWITCH
NORTH POINT BOILER 1,615.00         POOL HEATER REPAIR
PEOPLES SERVICES 185.00             MONTHLY INTERNET CHARGES
PEREGRINE CORP. 1,537.10         AUGUST UTILITY BILLS
PRICE CHOPPER 254.37             BUDGET WORKSHOP/COFFEE
QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC 300.00             OFFICE MACHINE POSTAGE
RUMANS, FRAN 100.00             DEPOSIT REFUND - FOX HALL



RURAL WATER DISTRICT #2 39.56                WATER - PARKS
SCHULTE SUPPLY INC 1,182.50         COLD ASPHALT PATCH
SHRED-IT USA 87.58                SHRED SERVICES
SMH CONSULTANTS 18,412.50      AMITY SIDEWALK DESIGN/ENGINEER
UCI 125.00             PRE-EMPLOYMENT SCREENING
UTILITY SAFETY & DESIGN 7,950.00         GAS CONTRACT - AUGUST
VERIZON 1,254.64         CELLULAR - ALL
WEX BANK 6,804.72         FUEL - ALL
WHITE'S AUTOMOTIVE 2,064.56         MOWER TIRES/BRAKES & POWER STEERING
CLAIMS TOTAL 92,113.34    



Constitution Week Proclamation 

 

WHEREAS: September 17, 2024, marks the two hundred and thirty-seventh 

anniversary of the drafting of the Constitution of the United States of America by the 

Constitutional Convention; and 

WHEREAS: It is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this magnificent 

document and its memorable anniversary; and to the patriotic celebrations which will 

commemorate the occasion; and 

WHEREAS: Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a proclamation each year by 

the President of the United States of America designating September 17 through 23 as 

Constitution Week, 

NOW, THEREFORE I, Donna Cook by virtue of the authority vested in me as Mayor 

in the City of Louisburg, Kansas, do hereby proclaim the week of September 17 

through 23 as 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 

AND ask our citizens to reaffirm the ideals of the Framers of the constitution had in 

1787 by vigilantly protecting the freedoms guaranteed to us through this guardian of 

our liberties, remembering that lost rights may never be regained. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the 

City to be affixed this 16th day of September of the year of our Lord two thousand 

twenty four. 

 

Signed ____________________________________  

 

SEAL Attest _______________________ 

 



 

City of Louisburg 

Memo 
To: Louisburg Governing Body 

From: Peter Yazbec 

Date: September 16, 2024 

Re: Louisburg Aquatic Center Design and Engineering Update 

  

 

Background:   

The city has been working with Lamp Rynearson on the renovation design and engineering for the 

Louisburg Aquatic Center (LAC). Substantial upgrades have been identified, those include:  

- Raising the zero depth to make the area more usable for younger children. 

- Removing the existing fountain spray features. 

- Adding a peninsula for seating and separating the shallow depth area and the deeper lap lanes. 

- Adding steps and a chair lift for ADA compliance. 

- Adding a rope swing in the dive well. 

Lamp Rynearson have also provided input on recent popular features that have been utilized in zero 

depth areas. The first is splash pad type features. These features would be spread out throughout the 

zero-depth area allowing kids to play at several different stations.  

The second suggestion is a large play structure, similar to a playground at a park. This will also have 

water features incorporated into the structure. Attached you’ll find two illustrations for the two proposed 

options. The two options were discussed at the Park & Tree Board meeting last week, and that body 

recommended City Council pursue the splash pad. 

A Facebook poll was conducted and approximately 170 individuals provided input. The majority were in 

favor of the splash pad style play features.  

Lamp Rynearson advised there is a potential to have the renovations completed prior to the pool opening. 

However, a lot of variables go into the renovations being completed prior to opening and there is a 

potential for a possible delayed opening if any of the variables come into play.  

Financial:  



None at this time.   

 

Legal: 

No legal consideration at this time.  

Recommendation:   

Discuss and advised staff on the play features in the zero-depth area and the comfortability of completing 

the renovations before the 2025 pool opening.  



 

To: Louisburg Park & Tree Board 

From:  Jean Carder 

Date:  Sept. 6, 2024 

Re: Aquatic Center improvements 

 

The City Council has budgeted funds in 2024 for improvements at the Aquatic Center to include deck 

repair/replacement, potential piping replacement and added amenities. The Council issued a RFP for 

design work and chose Lamp Rynearson to complete the work. City staff is currently working with 

those designers on those improvements.  

Amenities that are being explored now are improvements to the zero-depth area to add activities for 

smaller children (5 or so and under). The current plan is to remove the zero-depth entry and build it 

up a bit so it doesn’t become as deep as quickly as it does now. A wall or shelf with a seating bench 

will be added toward the deeper end of the area to separate the shallow water from where it starts 

getting deeper. The spray fountains will be removed. The design team proposed either a splash pad 

style or play structure feature for the zero-depth entry. It was determined to put the two designs on 

Facebook to gather input on which option would be preferred: splash pad or play structure. There 

were about 170 comments on the Facebook post although not all chose an option. Of those that did, 

the splash pad style received the most positive comments.  

The pool also has a leak, and Council approved hiring a leak detection firm to determine where the 

leak was at. That leak is in the zero-depth area so the leak can be repaired as updates are made. 

Other amenities see the drop slide being replaced with a swing rope and adding a chair lift for 

handicap use. The design team is also exploring ways to add additional shade and seating areas to 

the facility.  

Staff is sharing the two concepts and are asking for a recommendation from the Park & Tree Board 

to take to Council. If we move quickly, there is potential to get all updates complete right around the 

start of the 2025 pool season. That would require a design recommendation by Park & Tree and 

approval at the Sept. 16 Council meeting. The design team could then finalize plans and prepare a 

bid set to be let potentially in October. It could be possible that work could commence this fall, 

dependent on weather. 

Financial: None at this time. 

Recommendation: Discuss and direct staff accordingly.  



 

Splash pad design: 

 

Play structure design: 

 

 

 






























	1-agenda 9-16-24
	2-council minutes 9-3-24
	3-BILLS LIST 9-16-24
	4-Constitution Week Proclamation - 2024
	5A-2024 LAC update
	5B-pool improvements PARK BOARD 9-9-24
	6-police
	7A-sto
	7B-2024 sto upoc
	8- farm
	9- gas



